

# **ILLKO Studio**

# User's Manual

Version 1.4 05/2024



Copyright © 2024, ILLKO, s.r.o.

All Rights Reserved. Copying or any other way of duplication of this document or its parts is allowed with antecedent written permission of ILLKO, s.r.o. only.

## Contents

1	Pre	face	<b>5</b>											
<b>2</b>	Pro	Program functions												
3	$\mathbf{Inst}$	allation	6											
	3.1	Supported operating systems	6											
	3.2	System requirements	6											
	3.3	Program installation	6											
	3.4	Program uninstallation	7											
	3.5	Program activation	8											
	3.6	Program data storage	8											
4	Pro	gram functions description	9											
	4.1	Data structure	9											
		4.1.1 Customer	9											
		4.1.2 Location	9											
		4.1.3 Equipment	9											
		4.1.4 Measurement	10											
	4.2	Restrictions when creating database data structure	10											
	4.3	Database files	10											
	4.4	LOG file	10											
	4.5	Program appearance	10											
	4.6	Icons	11											
	4.7	Toolbars	12											
		4.7.1 Main toolbar	12											
		4.7.2 Auxiliary toolbar	12											
		4.7.3 Toolbar setting - icon size	13											
		4.7.4 Toolbar setting - text descriptions	13											
		4.7.5 Toolbar positions	13											
5	Woi	rk with the program	14											
Ŭ	5.1	Program undating	14											
	5.2	Program setting	14											
	5.3	Automatic notification of database saving	16											
	5.0	Creating of backup	16											
	5.1	Data import from previous programs	16											
	5.6	Data import from CSV file	17											
	5.0	Data export in CSV and XML files	17											
	5.8	Data export for ILLKO Studio View browser	17											
	5.0	Itom (record) creating	18											
	0.5	5.0.1 Customer	18											
		5.9.1 Customer $1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.$	10 19											
		5.3.2 Equipment	10 19											
		5.5.5 Equipment	10											
	5 10	J.3.4 Measurement	19											
	0.10		20											

	F 11		00
	5.11	Item deleting	20
	5.12	Item movement	20
	5.13	Apply template	21
	5.14	Apply sequence	21
	5.15	Appliance search	21
	5.16	Filter & equipment multiple modifications	21
	5.17	Filter & measurement mass modifications	23
	5.18	Equipment name automatic proposal	23
	5.19	Searching for expired inspections	23
	5.20	Report printing	24
	5.21	Report modification	25
	5.22	Information	$\frac{-0}{25}$
	5.23	User's notes in the program	$\frac{1}{25}$
6	Con	munication with measuring device	26
Ū	6.1	Data sending in a device	$\frac{-6}{26}$
	6.2	Data downloading from device	$\frac{20}{27}$
	0.2		21
Li	st of	items	29
	Cust	omer. supplier	29
	Equi	pment	29
	Meas	surement	30
	Tom		30
	Tem	plaies	50
Li	cence	9	<b>31</b>

## 1 Preface

The ILLKO Studio program is intended for support of inspections of electric equipment. It allows transmitting the measured values from the selected measuring devices for electric system inspections carried out by ILLKO, s.r.o. If REVEX device is referred to in the text below, it means REVEX 2051, REVEXprofi (II) and REVEXmax devices collectively if not stated otherwise.

## 2 Program functions

- Management of the database of electric equipment with the Customer, Location, Equipment and Measurement structure.
- Transmission of a list of equipment from a database in PC into REVEX and MDtest devices (except for REVEX 2051).
- Transmission of the measured values from REVEX and MDtest devices into a database in PC.
- The program contains FastReport® generator of lists which allows:
  - Creating, editing and printing of forms for inspection reports, lists of equipment, etc.
  - Exporting and printing of the results of inspections in PDF, HTML, JPG and other formats.
- Management of a database of the inspecting technicians and measuring devices.
- Import and export of the records on equipment in the CSV format for editing in external applications of the spreadsheet type and further processing.
- Export of the records on equipment in the XML format for further processing.
- Export of the records on equipment in the format for ILLKO Studio View browser.

## 3 Installation

#### 3.1 Supported operating systems

• Windows 7, 8, 10, 11 (32-bit version, 64-bit version)



#### WARNING

Microsoft .NET Framework 4.8 interface has to be installed in the computer.

Good user knowledge of work with PC in Windows supported operating systems is necessary for work with the program and utilization of its functions. Knowledge of work with spreadsheets (such as MS Excel or LibreOffice Calc) is beneficial.

#### 3.2 System requirements

- A computer with minimum 1GB RAM.
- At least 50 MB of free space on the hard disk for the program + space for data.
- A printer if you require output form printing.
- Recommended minimum monitor resolution: 1024x768 or 1280x720 pixels.

#### 3.3 Program installation

- It is necessary to have the administrator's rights for program installation, i.e. to be logged in to a user's account with computer administrator's rights.
- Insert the installation CD in the CD-ROM drive or start the installation file downloaded from www.illko.cz (skip following 2 steps).
- If automatic start of programs from CD is permitted, the initial menu from which you can select program installation will be displayed.
- If automatic start of programs from CD is not permitted, start (e.g. using Explorer) the Autorun.exe file located in the root directory of the installation CD manually. The initial menu from which you can select program installation will be displayed.

- Follow the instructions of the installation wizard:
  - Select the language of the application at first. Click on the Next button after welcoming screen displaying.
  - Select I accept the agreement after reading the licence conditions in order to be able to continue installation. An inquiry for a destination path of the installed program is displayed after clicking on the Next button. If there is not any specific reason for a change of location, we recommend that you accept the offered destination. The wizard will then inquire about location of the program shortcuts in the Windows Start menu. If you do not wish to create a shortcut in the Start menu, check the Don't create a Start Menu folder item. The wizard will offer you the option to create a shortcut in the Windows work area in the next screen. Select a field identification at your discretion. Installation is then ready and can be started by clicking on the Install button.

WARNING

Program setting itself, forms and applied standards (VDE, EN,  $\ldots$ ) is based on the selection of the language version of the installation program.

#### 3.4 Program uninstallation

- Quit the ILLKO Studio program.
- It is necessary to have the administrator's rights for program uninstallation, i.e. to be logged in to a user's account with computer administrator's rights.
- Select Start/Illko/ILLKO Studio/Uninstall or select the ILLKO Studio program in the Start/Control panels/Uninstall a Program and select Remove.
- Follow the instructions of the uninstallation wizard.



#### WARNING

The **Documents/ILLKOStudio** folder will be retained.

#### 3.5 Program activation

The ILLKO Studio program is normally distributed in DEMO version. It is necessary to enter an activation code manually or load it from a supported device (REVEXmax, REVEXprofi II or MDtest) for obtaining a full version. The window is displayed immediately after program start (Figure 1).

, ILLKO Studio - act	ivation	×
Company name: Company ID:		
Activation key <ul> <li>insert manually</li> <li>load from REVEXr</li> <li>load from REVEXp</li> <li>load from MDtest d</li> </ul>	nax device rofi II device levice	
	OK	Cancel

Figure 1: Program activation

#### 3.6 Program data storage

The **Documents/ILLKOStudio** folder is created automatically after the first start of the program. All files necessary for program running are stored in this folder. The user can store files (databases) into any location on the computer hard disk, a portable media, etc.

Meaning of individual folders:

- backups (backup files))
- logs (logging in files)
- reports (listings for print)
- settings (program setting, user's notes etc.)

## 4 Program functions description

Note: The term **Equipment** in the program refers to a common electric appliance, *i.e.* an appliance, tool, machine, welding machine, etc.

#### 4.1 Data structure

The program allows management of theoretically unlimited number of records (the actual number of records is restricted by the memory of the computer available and partially also by computer performance).

The program database is presented in a form of a tree structure similar to the structure of folders on computer hard disk. In order to allow easy arrangement of the records on the carried out inspections, the following data structure has been defined in the ILLKO Studio program:

#### 4.1.1 Customer

The Customer is an organisation for which an inspection is carried out. Its record is located on the highest (root) level of the root structure. Customer contact data are saved in the record. The records on location (buildings, plants, ...) can be inserted in the customer record **only**. The customer record is contained **only once** in the database.

#### 4.1.2 Location

The Location determines a place of physical occurrence of the inspected equipment. Records of the inspected equipment are inserted in the Location. Any location can be used also for inserting other locations (such as buildings, plants which contain offices, workshops, ...). If records of equipment are inserted in a location, it is not possible to insert a new location record simultaneously. The maximum location record nesting position is five (i.e. the customer + 4 locations).

#### 4.1.3 Equipment

The Equipment record bears information on the identification number, name, kind, type, safety class, etc. (summarily identified as appliance heading). Records of the carried out inspections (measurements) are saved in the equipment record. ID – identification number is the most important part of the equipment heading. The equipment identification number is the only link between a physical equipment and its record in the database. The identification number is a chain of symbols represented by letters and numerals. A label with a bar code applied on the equipment or a RFID transponder (chip) for wireless identification positioned under the equipment plastic cover or attached to the appliance in a form of a pendant tag is an ideal medium for ID.

#### 4.1.4 Measurement

Data (measured values) obtained using a measuring device during inspection together with the records of the inspector who has carried the inspection and of the measuring device with which the inspection has been carried out are saved in a measurement record. A record also contains the results of the inspection including assessment and description of defects, date and time of the inspection carried out. The measurement records are arranged on the basis of record date from the oldest to newest one and thus constitutes the history of inspections carried out on the appliance in this way. A measurement record can be inserted in the equipment record **only**.

#### 4.2 Restrictions when creating database data structure

- A customer is contained only once in the database.
- A customer with at least one location must exist; otherwise, it is not possible to insert pieces of equipment in the database.
- A location can be inserted in the Customer record or in another location only.
- If a location contains equipment, it is not possible to insert another location in it.
- The appliance with a unique ID can be inserted only in the Location record.

#### 4.3 Database files

Each database (or each customer) is saved in a separate file with ISD (ILLKO Studio Data) extension. Only 1 file (database) can be opened in the program at a time. However, multiple starts of the ILLKO Studio program are possible. The files are opened and saved in a standard way.

#### 4.4 LOG file

The contents of the logging in file can be displayed in the **LOG file** separate window using the **View->Show LOG file** menu. A text listing of the program running is included in this file:

- list of the deleted items
- list of the moved items
- error messages
- information on program running

#### 4.5 **Program appearance**

The database structure is displayed in the left-hand part of the window (Figure 2). Individual data items with respect to a selected database item (i.e. card) can be defined in the right-hand part of the window. It is also possible to switch between

individual windows using a keyboard:  ${\bf ENTER}$  - access to the card,  ${\bf ESC}$  - access to the tree structure.

📣 sample	e - ILLKO Studio						-	-		×
File Ed	it View Tools Communication Settings	н	elp							
1 🗋 🗀	🔚 崣   Search ID: 🔹	ſ	Send data 🚺 Do	ownload data 🛛 💎 Filter   QExpi	ired inspections	🚺 Informa	ation Save-notofication:		v	/
Add:	ILLKO, s.r.o.	^	📃 Equipme	ent 🔣 Save	changes (F12)					
To .	- 🚫 [2001] PC PCS - 🚫 [2084] monitor LG L1730P		ID:	2084	Note:					
<b>e</b>	03.10.2021		Name:	monitor LG L1730P	ĺ					
	<ul> <li>         (1) [2132] extension cord H05VV-F36     </li> <li>         (2127] extension cord with SPD AP     </li> </ul>		Casial as unknow	41640	]					
	<ul> <li>Q [2137] Extension cord with 3r D * Ar</li> <li>Q [3176] magnifier with light mod 806</li> </ul>		Senai number:	41540	]					
X	<ul> <li>Q [3182] magnifier with light mod 806</li> </ul>		Inventory number:	3176						
Delete	C2 [3183] power supply (USB isolator),		Category:	DIN VDE 0404-1 - Equipments V	Meas. sequence	•	Boe			
	Q [4006] vacuum cleaner PHILIPS FC861		Equipment type:	Unattached v	Load from	n list	RisoM_PE			
Å	- 🟠 Floor		Connection	220\/ plug	Classical		laitEq IdifEq			
Select	- 🟠 no.1		connection.	230V plug ~	Clear meas. s	equence	ldifEqR			
	2003) extension cord with hiter L		Class of meas .:	I ~			IUIICQ *			
Move	- 🧭 [2036] PC PCS		Group of meas .:	E ~	Cable length:	2,0 🜲	[meter(s)]			
	2005] monitor LG L1730P		Last inspection:	03 10 2021	Interval:	24 🔺	[month(s)]			
Copy	. I [3159] portable SPD - APC		New income	02 10 2022						
	[4003] kettle TEFAL DELFINA mod.214		Next Inspection:	03.10.2023	Automatic ass	essment of tr	he term of the next inspection			
Pasta	- no.2		Sorting key:		Removed from	n registration				
raste	- 😭 no.3		Customer items:							
	2022] UPS APC 500			[	1					
Apply	🛛 🦪 [2024] speakers HAMA CS476		Name 1:		Value 1:	<u> </u>				
template	[2070] printer HP LJ1320		Name 2:		Value 2:	L				
:=	[2U/4] extension cord		Name 3:		Value 3:					
Apply	[2033] 10103		Name 4:		Value 4:					
sequence	[2122] extension cord		Name 5:		Value 5:					
	[2123] power supply DVE	~								

Figure 2: Program window

4.6 Icons		
Customer	8	
Location		
Equipment	$\odot$	(passed)
	Q	(passed - expired date of inspection, according to program setting)
	Θ	(failed)
		(N/A - inspection has not been carried out)
	▲	(removed from registration - passed)
	4	(removed from registration - failed)
	▲	(removed from registration - $N/A$ )
Measurement	0	(passed)
		(failed)
Special	Â	(it does not contain nested records)

#### 4.7 Toolbars

#### 4.7.1 Main toolbar

The main toolbar is always displayed (it cannot be deactivated). There are the basic items used for control of the complete program in the main toolbar.



#### 4.7.2 Auxiliary toolbar

The auxiliary toolbar can be deactivated or activated using the **View->Auxiliary toolbar** menu. There are the items used for operations with the Location, Equipment and Measurement records in the auxiliary toolbar. The items in the auxiliary toolbar are identical with those contained in the **Edit** menu or in a context menu (clicking on the respective record with the right mouse button).



Figure 4: Auxiliary toolbar

#### 4.7.3 Toolbar setting - icon size

Size of the icons in the main and auxiliary toolbars can be adjusted using the **View->Small icons** menu.

#### 4.7.4 Toolbar setting - text descriptions

Displaying of the text descriptions of the main and auxiliary toolbars can be set (individually) using the View->Labels - main toolbar menu or View->Labels - auxiliary toolbar menu.

#### 4.7.5 Toolbar positions

Both the main toolbar or the auxiliary toolbar can be positioned in any position in either top or left-hand window part. The following combinations are possible:

- 1 panel in the top, 1 panel in the left
- 2 panels in the top in a single row one after the other
- 2 panels in the top in two rows one under the other
- 2 panels in the left, in a single column one under the other
- 2 panels in the left, in two columns one beside the other

The toolbars can be moved by mouse button clicking on the i or symbol on the left-hand or top edge of the toolbar and drawing in the demanded position. The toolbars may not cover one another.

## 5 Work with the program

#### 5.1 Program updating

The program checks automatically at each start whether there is a new update of the program at the website www.illko.cz (if Internet connection is available). This information is displayed for the user in the top toolbar of the program (Figure 5). The update itself is carried out manually - the user downloads the corresponding installation program and carries performs update. Program setting remains retained.



Figure 5: Automatic check of new program version availability

#### 5.2 Program setting

Select the **Settings** item in the main menu. It is possible to modify the parameters as follows according to the tab selected (Figure 6):

- General
  - language
  - CSV file coding
  - maximum length of the equipment name in the tree (the remaining symbols are substituted with symbol "...")
  - newly created equipment ID prefix and length
  - preset value for searching for expired inspections (number of days)
  - automatic searching for expired inspections after program start
  - highlighting of the expired inspections (different icon  $\bigcirc$  )
- **Templates** (pre-defined parameters for both new and existing appliances)
  - creating a copy of the existing template
  - the templates can also be imported/exported in the CSV format (individual items are the same as for the equipment and group name and template name are added)

- Measurement sequences
  - the selected parameter is moved from the Available methods list in the
     Selected methods list using the + key
  - the selected parameter can be removed from the Selected methods list using the key
  - the order of the selected methods can be defined using the  $\clubsuit$  and  $\clubsuit$  keys
- **Supplier** (it is used to enter the data necessary for form printing)
- **Technician** (a list of inspecting technicians it is possible to insert also a signature in the form of a picture such as JPG)
- Measuring devices
- **Preset values** (it can be used for quick selection of the following items):
  - category
  - equipment type
  - method of connection
  - measurement class
  - measurement group
- **Display mode** (it is possible to select which parameters should be displayed in the Filter window and in the Measurement tab when selecting the "Own selection" item)
- Import/Export (it is used to save and read the program setting)

#### WARNING



- If setting is changed, it is not necessary to restart the program (this does not apply to a language change and when importing a setting from a file).
- If a collision occurs (e.g. when serial numbers are identical for more measuring device), the change is not carried out and the user is notified with a message of error occurrence.

📣 ILLKO	) Studio - se	ettings (user profile	2)							—		×
General	Templates	Meas. sequences	Supplier	Insp. technician	Meas. de	vices	Default texts	Display mode	Import/export			
General Langua CSV file Maximu ID equip ID equip Searchi Automa Highligh	<ul> <li>ILLKO Studio - settings (user profile)</li> <li>General Templates Meas. sequences Supplier</li> <li>Language:</li> <li>CSV files encoding (import/export):</li> <li>Maximum length of equipment name in the tree:</li> <li>ID equipment - prefix:</li> <li>ID equipment - number of characters:</li> <li>Searching for expired inspections (number of days):</li> <li>Automatic searching for expired inspections (different icon):</li> <li>Highlighting of the expired inspections (different icon):</li> </ul>		Insp. technician english Windows-1250 35 ABC- 4 30 C Insp. technician Insp	Meas. der	(chai Cent Exan	Default texts nge to take effe ral European (V nple: ABC-0000	Display mode ect after restartin Vindows)	g the program)				
	General         Templates         Meas. sequences         Supplier           Language:         CSV files encoding (import/export):         Maximum length of equipment name in the tree:         ID           ID equipment - number of characters:         ID equipment - number of characters:         Searching for expired inspections (number of days):           Automatic searching for expired inspections (different icon)         Ifferent icon)						6	- Save		Close		

Figure 6: ILLKO Studio program setting (user profile)

#### 5.3 Automatic notification of database saving

The function can be activated by selection of a time interval in the top toolbar of the program. If data is changed, the option to save the program is offered to the user according to the interval selected. The function can be deactivated by selecting the "- - -" value.

#### 5.4 Creating of backup

A backup is created automatically at each database saving in a file (Documents/ ILLKOStudio/backups folder). The backup name consists of the initial file name and date and time of saving. The user can restore the data from the backup using the File->Restore from backup main menu.

The size of the folder **Documents/ILLKOStudio/backups** is checked at each start; if 500 MB is exceeded, the user can display the directory and delete the unnecessary files.

#### 5.5 Data import from previous programs

The program allows data importing from the REVIZE profi V1.6 and V2.0 programs.

The imported data opens in a new database. It is necessary to select a customer before import itself (only **1 customer** can be present in the ILLKO Studio program database). After data import completing, the user can save the data in a file and import another customer from the same database.

### 5.6 Data import from CSV file

A CSV file can be imported into:

- an empty database
- an existing database

It is checked during import whether the appliance is present in the database. If it is the case, **appliance parameters are not changed** and only the measurement **with a different date of the inspection carried out** is added. If the equipment is not present in the database (an empty database or a new piece of equipment), the equipment is created and a measurement is assigned to it simultaneously (if it has been defined). The new equipment is saved in the defined location. If any appliance location is not defined in the CSV file, pieces of equipment are created automatically in the location called **\_Unassigned**.



#### WARNING

Automatic moving of the existing pieces of equipment in another location can never take place!

Note: If an error occurs during import, this fact is indicated together with the number of the line on which the error occurred. A window with results (new/existing equipments, new/existing measurements) is displayed after import completing. The results are recorded also in the LOG file.

#### 5.7 Data export in CSV and XML files

The user can export the files in either CSV or XML format. CSV file data is coded according to a definition in the setting. Individual data items are separated with ; and are defined with the quotation marks ".

Only the last measurement or all measurements can be exported in the CSV and XML files.

#### WARNING



Complete information on appliances and measurements (except for supplier's information) is exported in the CSV and XML files. It results from the above mentioned that any loss of information does not take place when exporting data in CSV, editing it in any spreadsheet and consequent importing in the ILLKO Studio program.

#### 5.8 Data export for ILLKO Studio View browser

The complete database with the currently set supplier can be exported for the ILLKO Studio View browser in which the user can view, search for or print inspection reports for electric appliances without the possibility to change individual items. The file is protected against potential misuse (it is not possible to create a full-value database from it).

#### 5.9 Item (record) creating

#### 5.9.1 Customer

An item can neither be created nor deleted. It is present only once within the complete database.

#### 5.9.2 Location

- using the key shortcut Ctrl+L (location)
- by clicking on the 63 icon in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Add location
- using the main menu Edit->Add location

#### 5.9.3 Equipment

- using the key shortcut Ctrl+E (equipment)
- by clicking on the  $\bigcirc$  icon in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Add equipment
- using the main menu Edit->Add equipment

Equipment can also be created by copying another equipment:

- using the key shortcuts Ctrl+C and Ctrl+V
- by clicking on the and and icons in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Copy equipment/measurement and Paste equipment/ measurement
- using the main menu Edit->Copy equipment/measurement and Edit-> Paste equipment/measurement

When creating a new piece of equipment, a list of templates (Figure 7) which should be applied to the newly created piece of equipment is offered automatically (this does not apply to equipment copying). Templates can be assigned to categories (if any category is specified, the template is displayed in the **\_\_Unassigned** category. Window size can be changed. If the list of templates is not available or if you click on the **Cancel** button, empty equipment is created.

🚕 ILLKO Studio - select the template	×
Unassigned Kettles Kettles ECG 1205 Kettles Eta 412 Kettles Tefal E15 Monitors Monitor Acer Monitor Benq Monitor HP	
Axpand alle (automatically)	
OK Cancel	

Figure 7: List of templates

#### 5.9.4 Measurement

- using the key shortcut Ctrl+M (measurement)
- by clicking on the  $\bigcirc$  icon in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Add measurement
- using the main menu Edit->Add measurement

Measurement can also be created by copying another measurement:

- $\bullet$  using the key shortcuts Ctrl+C and Ctrl+V
- by clicking on the 🗎 and 🗳 icons in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Copy equipment/measurement and Paste equipment/ measurement
- using the main menu Edit->Copy equipment/measurement and Edit-> Paste equipment/measurement



#### WARNING

Information on the measuring device or other measuring devices and the inspector are deleted when copying a measurement. Measurement date is inserted according to PC setting.

#### 5.10 Item editing

All items (Customer, Location, Equipment and Measurement) can be edited. Saving can be carried out by depressing the **Save changes** button or the **F12** key. When selecting (marking) another item in the tree, a window with inquiry will be displayed in the case of unsaved changes. The user can either save or discard the changes.

#### 5.11 Item deleting

The Location, Equipment and Measurement can be deleted (including the nested records):

- by depressing the **Delete** key
- by clicking on the  $\checkmark$  icon in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting **Delete selected items**
- using the main menu Edit->Delete selected items

#### 5.12 Item movement

The **Location** and **Equipment** can be moved (including the nested records) in another position by simple mouse dragging. Other possibilities of movement:

- $\bullet$  using the key shortcuts Ctrl+X and Ctrl+W
- by clicking on the  $\swarrow$  and  $\square$  icons in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Select items for moving a Move selected items
- using the main menu Edit->Select items for moving a Edit->Move selected items

The program checks automatically whether the movement is possible (another nested location together with equipment may not be present in the location, etc.). It is necessary to confirm the movement in order to avoid accidental (unintentional) changes.

### 5.13 Apply template

It is possible to change the parameters of the selected pieces of equipment either individually or generally in the program:

- using the key shortcut Ctrl+T (template)
- by clicking on the 🛅 icon in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Apply template to equipment
- using the main menu Edit->Apply template to equipment

When applying a template, equipment ID and its serial and inventory number will be retained. All the other parameters will be changed according to the template selected.

#### 5.14 Apply sequence

It is possible to assign a measuring sequence for the selected pieces of equipment either individually or generally in the program:

- using the key shortcut Ctrl+S (sequence)
- by clicking on the 🗮 icon in the auxiliary toolbar
- using a context menu (by right-hand mouse button clicking on the selected item) and selecting Apply sequence to equipment
- using the main menu Edit->Apply sequence to equipment

#### 5.15 Appliance search

It is possible to search for a piece of equipment simply according to a unique ID, inventory number, serial number or sorting key in the program main window. It is possible to enter either the complete chain or a chain with substitutional symbols: the "\_" symbol substitutes 1 symbol while the "%" symbol substitutes any number of symbols.

#### 5.16 Filter & equipment multiple modifications

Select a customer or only a location in the **Filter** window at first (it is possible to select using either CTRL key or SHIFT key even from more locations). Other nested locations are also included in the selection. If it is necessary to search for pieces of equipment according to a certain criterion, select the **Use filter** option and enter one or more criteria. It is possible to display the equipment by depressing the **Load and show equipment** button. The resulting list can be arranged in columns alphabetically.

Pieces of equipment can be selected using the CTRL or SHIFT keys (selection of all the listed pieces of equipment can be carried out using CTRL+A). The following operations can be carried out with this equipment:

- mass changes of parameters for the selected equipment
- printing
- sending equipment into a measuring device
- deleting

A mass modification of a parameter of equipments (Figure 8) can be carried out by enabling the given parameter ( $\blacksquare$  selection) and entering a value (the other data will be retained, i.e. the original data will remain). When reading a window (Figure 8), the texts (data) identical for all the selected pieces of equipment will be displayed. The different data is not displayed (blank text).

Note: All items are only "pre-filled" at template applying. For actual application of the changes, it is necessary to enable the required items using  $\blacksquare$ .

ILLKO Studio - filter				-	×
Change parameters of equipments					
ID:		Note:			
Name:					
Serial number:	_				
Inventory number:		Measurement s	equence		
Category:		Load fro	m list		
Equipment type:		Cancel meas.	sequence		
Connection:					
Class of meas.:		Cable length:	0,0 (meter(s)]		
Group of meas.:		Interval:	12 (month(s)]		
Sorting key:		Removed from re	gistration		
Customer items:					
Name 1:		Value 1:			
Name 2:		Value 2:			
Name 3:		Value 3:			
Name 4:		Value 4:			
Name 5:		Value 5:			
Save Cancel			Use template		
Completed. number of records: 65					 

Figure 8: Mass editing of equipment parameters

#### 5.17 Filter & measurement mass modifications

The start of the procedure is identical with that in Section 5.16. It is necessary to switch the **Measurements for selected equipment** tab after selection of equipment from the table. It is again possible to make the selection more specific using a filter. The selected measurements can be **modified**, **printed** or **deleted**.

A mass modification of a parameter can be carried out using the same method as that described in Section 5.16.

#### 5.18 Equipment name automatic proposal

When editing the **Name** in the Equipment tab or in Filter (mass modifications), a list of already used names is offered to the user after entering **at least 3 symbols** (Figure 9).

Equipme	ent 🔣 Save chi
ID:	3182
Name:	ext
Serial number:	extension cord
Inventory number:	extension cord with filter LFT 2001
Category:	extension cord with SPD - APC P5B
Equipment type:	

Figure 9: Equipment name automatic proposal

## 5.19 Searching for expired inspections

The program allows searching for expired inspections. Select the date from which searching should be made in the **Expired inspections** window (Figure 10) (when opening the window, the date is set automatically according to the preset number of days from the current date and searching is made).

The user also has the option to search for expired inspections from more databases (files) saved in the same folder. The results can be saved in a CSV file.

#### WARNING



When selecting more databases (files), the currently open database is not searched for - the database (or data) is present **in a temporary folder** of the Windows system and it may not correspond to the data saved in the file which has been used (read) in the program.

📣 ILLKO	Studio - expired in:	pections									-		×
Select files         Next inspection:       03.05.2017         Search       Image: Completed, number of records: 63													
Order	ID equipment	Equipment na	me	Inventory number	Location		Last inspection	Next inspection		Result	Custome	er	^
55	2072	Fronius typ 4,0	75,107,631	1101	Removed		25.05.2012	25.05.2013		Passed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.	
56	3176	magnifier with li	ight mod 8069		_Unassigr	ed	11.02.2013	11.02.2015		Passed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.	
57	3182	magnifier with li	ight mod 8069		_Unassigr	ed	11.02.2013	11.02.2015		Passed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.	
58	2132	extension cord	H05VV-F36		_Unassigr	ed	12.05.2010 12.05.2011 😣 Faile		Failed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.		
59	2137	extension cord	with SPD - A		_Unassigr	ed	01.01.1970	01.01.1971	0	N/A	ILLKO, s.r.o.		
60	3185	model ILLKO P	SF 2		_Unassign	ed	11.02.2013	11.02.2015		Passed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.	
61	2071	UPS BUSTEK	400	3322	Removed		13.05.2010	13.05.2012		Passed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.	
62	4006 vacuum cleaner PHILIPS F 4006		4006	_Unassign	ed	10.02.2013	10.02.2015		Passed	ILLKO, s	.r.o.		
								Expo	ort to	CSV file		Close	- <b>*</b>

Figure 10: Searching for expired inspections

### 5.20 Report printing

The results can be printed using both pre-defined and customized reports in the FastReport<sup>®</sup> environment. Printing can be carried out by selecting the customer, location, equipment or measurements in the main window and depressing the **Print** button. It is also possible to print from the **Filter** window after selecting the pieces of equipment and measuring on the basis of the required parameters. In the **Print** window, it is possible to carry out:

- report selecting
- report renaming, copying or deleting
- report reading from a file
- report saving in a file
- report editing
- print customized setting
  - to print inspector's signature
  - to sort by location (standard arrangement is sorted by equipment ID)
  - to print all measurements (only the last measurement is printed in standard configuration)
  - to print including the equipment removed from registration

#### 5.21 Report modification

The report consists of the individual objects in which it is possible to change text, size, font, border, etc. It is also possible to copy and move these objects.

A report modification can be carried out the following steps:

- select the suitable report and make copy by depressing the **Copy** button
- open the Editor by depressing the **Run editor** button
- left-hand mouse button clicking (2x) on the selected object
- change the text or select the database field using the **Data Sources** in the right part of the window

Note: A plain text is inserted into the text field **directly**, database field is inserted into the text field **with the brackets** "[]". Text field allows the combination of plain text and database fields.

#### WARNING



The reports are stored in separate files with FRX extension in the **Documents/ILLKOStudio/reports** folder.

Report editing is intended for the more experienced users. The information and instructions for operation of the Fast-Report  $\mathbb{R}$  environment are available at www.fast-report.com

#### 5.22 Information

The program contains a document in which the abbreviations of the measured parameters used are listed. This document is in the PDF format and can be displayed by selecting Help->Information in the main menu or using the button in Settings window.

#### 5.23 User's notes in the program

The user can create his/her own notes. The window with comments can be displayed by selecting **Help->User's note** in the main menu. The text can be modified using the **Edit** button. The modifications made can be either discarded or saved.

## 6 Communication with measuring device

Communication with measuring device differs in dependence on the measuring device type:

- REVEX 2051 data downloading only
- REVEXprofi (II) data sending in the device as well as data downloading
- REVEXmax data sending in the device as well as data downloading
- MDtest data sending in the device as well as data downloading

#### WARNING



The ILLKO Studio program does not recognize location at communication with the REVEXprofi (II) device; i.e. the recorded equipment is displayed in the initial location in the device. When downloading data and consequent merging, **no automatic movement of equipment** between locations is carried out. New pieces of equipment are saved in the location with the identification **\_Unassigned**.

#### 6.1 Data sending in a device

Currently selected locations or pieces of equipment can be chosen by depressing the **Send data** or using the **F6** key and a window for data sending is displayed then (Figure 11). There is a number of selected pieces of equipment displayed in the bottom part. A measuring device type and a communication port (it depends upon device type) is to be selected then. The data is sent in the device by depressing the **Send** button or **F5** key. The name of the measuring device including its serial number and firmware is displayed in the bottom part of the window during transmission. If an error occurs during data transmission, a message is displayed.

📣 ILLKO Stu	dio - send data				×
Send (F5	i) 🗲 Close				
	Select device	REVEXmax		$\sim$	
	Select port USB COM / virtual COM	~	Help		
Number of sele	ected equipments: 65				::

Figure 11: Data sending in a device

#### WARNING

- If it is not possible to establish communication with the measuring device, terminate all the programs communicating with the measuring device (such as REVIZEprofi 2 program) or check the installed driver. If the program persists, use another communication protocol (it depends upon device type).
- Inspector selection is carried out only at data downloading from the device.
- Information on the sequences for a specific piece of equipment is transmitted in the device; the sequences listed in the program setting (user profile) are also transmitted.

#### 6.2 Data downloading from device

The window for data reception is displayed by depressing the **Download data** button or **F7** key (Figure 12). A measuring device type and a communication port (it depends upon device type) is to be selected then. The data is downloaded from the device by depressing the **Download data** button or **F5** key. The name of the device including its serial number and firmware is displayed in the bottom part of the window during transmission. The number of pieces of equipment read is displayed in the bottom part after transmission completing.

If an error occurs during data transmission, a message is displayed.

📤 ILLK	(O Studio - dow	nload data														_	-		X
	and the first of the second	E) Y D-1			- in the second s					(50)				Class				_	
	ownload data (F:	5) 🔨 Dele	te select	ed e	quipments	P Me	rge	e with basic datab	ase	e (F9) 🔚 Save	as C	.SV file (F10) 2	2	Close					
Select d	levice:	REVEXmax			Select	t port -				Lista		Mass chang	je	selected ed	luipmen	its			
Coloct ir	non toobnicion:	• • •	SB				нер		<ul> <li>Iotal result</li> <li>Visual cher</li> </ul>	t ck		Failed				$\sim$			
	O COM / Virtual COM										te	st					_		
Dov Dov	vnload all equipme	ents										Measurement	ent Change for selected equipment						nts
Index	ID	Date	Time		Total result			Visual check		Functional		Measurement	١ſ	Name	Va	lue			
1	equipment	20.00.2021	07.20		Deserved			Deserved		test		Deserved		RisoM_PE	>10	0,0			
2	2003	20.09.2021	07:16		Passed			Passed		Passed		Passed		ldirEq	0,0	00			
2	2010	20.03.2021	07:28		Passed			Passed		Pagead		Passed							
4	2018	20.09.2021	07:12		Passed			Passed		Passed		Passed							
<u> </u>	2010	20.00.2021	0,2			r			-										
													Measuring device						
														Name:	R	EVEXmi	эх		
														Serial numbe	r: W	0004			
														Calibration nu	imber: R	Max-41/	451N	l	
														Validity:	4.	2.2022			
Total re	esult:	Passed	$\sim$		ID equipment:	2016								Other measu	ing devid	es/fixtu	res:		_
Visual o	check:	Passed	$\sim$		Note:							~							~
Functio	nal test:	Passed	$\sim$									~							^
Measurement: Passed V					Date/time:	20.09	.20	21 🔲 🔻 07:16	1	5	- Sa	ave equipment							$\checkmark$
Number	of loaded equip	oments: 4									_				REV	EXmax	1.06	(S/N: W0	004)

Figure 12: Data downloading from device



It is possible to carry out the following operations with the downloaded data:

- to delete the marked pieces of equipment
- to change total result, visual check, functional test and measurement for the marked pieces of equipment generally
- to change total result, visual check, functional test and measurement, equipment ID, measurement date/time and comment with respect to measurement for a specific appliance
- to assign other measuring devices and fixtures for all measurements

The measuring device used is paired automatically with the data obtained from the program setting (user profile).

The downloaded data can be merged with the data in the current database immediately or such data can be exported in a CSV file.

#### WARNING

- Merging of the downloaded data with the data in the current database takes place on the basis of the same principle as CSV file import the user is notified of the modifications carried out (number of new and existing records) after merging (import) completing. The information is recorded also in the LOG file.
- When downloading data from the REVEX 2051 device, a window is displayed during transmission where it is possible to select a specific measuring device and select deleting of the initial "0".
- If only one inspector is listed in the program setting, it is selected **automatically**. If this is not the case, it is necessary to select the inspector **manually**.



(used in XML, CSV files and lists for printing)

## Customer & Supplier

Company	company name
Street	street
City	town or city
PostCode	postal code
Country	country or state
Identifier	company identification number
VatId	VAT identification number
Name	first name
Surname	surname
Phone	telephone number
Fax	fax number
Email	e-mail address
Note	note

## Equipment

$IdText^1$	ID
Name	equipment name
Serial Number	serial number
Inventory	inventory number
Category	category
EquipType	equipment type
Connection	method of connection
MeasClass	measurement class
MeasGroup	measurement group
CableLen	cable length
LastRev	last inspection date
NextRev	next inspection date
Interval	interval between inspections [months]
AutoRev	automatic assessment of the term of the next inspection
Result	inspection result
$Tree 14^{1}$	location (max. 4 levels)
TreeTotal	total location (only in lists for printing)
Note	note
Sorting Key	sorting key
CustName15	customer items - name (max. 5 items)
CustValue15	customer items - value (max. 5 items)
Archive	removed from registration
Sequence	measuring method (names separated with ",")
	,

#### Measurement

$Date^1$	inspection date
Time	inspection time
$Result Total^1$	total inspection result
$Result Visual^1$	visual check
$ResultFunct^1$	functional test
$Result Meas^1$	measurement result
1000 000111 0000	Values of the "result" items:
	- Failed
	- Passed
	-N/A
TechName	inspecting technician name
TechSurname	inspecting technician surname
TechLicence	inspecting technician licence
TechPhone	inspecting technician phone
TechEmail	inspecting technician e-mail address
DevName	measuring device name
DevSerialNumber	measuring device serial number
DevCalibration	measuring device calibration number
DevValidity	measuring device calibration validity
DevNext	other measuring devices and fixtures
Sorting Key	sorting key (in CSV, XML file: MeasSortingKey)
Note	note (in CSV, XML file: MeasNote)
$\dots measured$	
$param. \ abbrev.$	mentioned directly in program - Information button
<b>— 1</b>	
Templates	
Group	template group - optional data item
Id	template name
Name	equipment name
Category	category
Equip Type	equipment type
Connection	method of connection
MeasClass	measurement class
MeasGroup	measurement group
Interval	interval between inspections [months]
CableLen	cable length
Sorting Key	sorting key
Note	note
CustName15	customer items - name (max. 5 items)
CustValue15	customer items - value (max. 5 items)
AutoRev	automatic assessment of the term of the next inspection
Sequence	measuring method (names separated with ",")

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Columns which must **always be contained** in the imported CSV file. The values of items (except for IDtext) can also be blank.

## Licence

 $\bigodot$  2012-2024 ILLKO, s.r.o.

Windows is a registered trademark of the Microsoft company.

All the other mentioned trademarks and copyrights are a property of their respective owners.

Distribution of the versions of this document modified in a substantial way without written consent of the owner of copyright is forbidden.

The documentation is provided in the status "as it is" and all express or implied conditions, statements and guarantees including all implied guarantees of merchantability, suitability for a specific purpose or non-infringement of foreign rights are excluded except for the scope within which such refusals of guarantees are considered to be legally ineffective.

#### Licence agreement

This is the licence agreement between you, end user of the computer program, and ILLKO, s.r.o. (hereinafter "ILLKO" or "ILLKO company").).

Please read this licence agreement carefully!

If you do not agree with the terms and conditions of this licence agreement, stop using this program immediately! You have the right for reimbursement of the paid licence fee within 15 days from the date of purchase of the given program version if you return all physical parts of the product package and destroy all the copies of the given program version made so far or uninstall already installed program.

1. Licence provision. Through this licence agreement, the ILLKO company grants you non-exclusive, non-transferable right to use a copy of the computer program provided by the ILLKO company if you comply with the terms and conditions defined in this agreement. Your licence applies also to the software incorporated in the ILLKO resulting program as a component. Integrated components are and remain the property of the third parties.

2. Copyright. The computer program which is the subject of this licence agreement is and remains the property of the ILLKO company. The computer program is a subject of copyright and as such it is fully subjected to its protection. This does not affect the rights of the third parties the components of which are used in the licensed program.

3. Limitation of use. You may not use the program in a way which could damage or disturb the copyright of the manufacturer in any way. It is above all forbidden to make copies of the program (including one copy intended solely for the purpose of archiving and backup); you also may not reproduce, modify, alter, decompile, translate from machine code, analyse reversely the program or to make related works from it by its processing. All rights which are not expressly granted are reserved. Any copies of the program which may be made by you on the basis of this agreement must contain complete copyright and other statements which are attached to the program original copy.

4. Transferability limitation. This licence is granted you personally and for that reason, it does not allow you to resell, lend, submit, hire any copy of the program or to transfer it on any person in any way. Any transfer contrary to the above mentioned provision is invalid and represents a cause for termination of validity of your licence.

5. Number of installations. By purchasing one licence of the program, you obtain the right for installation and use of the program in two computers provided that the copy of the program is never loaded in the RAM memories of both computers simultaneously and

also provided that both the computers are operated by you.

6. Limited guarantee. ILLKO guarantees the program in the substantial features to comply with the user documentation for at least 15 days from the date of purchase of the given program version. ILLKO does not guarantee the program to run without interruptions or to be free of errors. The above mentioned guarantee is the only guarantee provided instead of all other guarantees, expressed or implied including implied guarantees of merchantability and suitability for specific purposes.

7. Guarantee of reimbursement without specifying any reason. If the program does not fulfil your demands laid on it or is unsuitable for you for any reason, you have the possibility, without giving any reasons, to return it in the ILLKO company within 15 days from its purchase. In such event, you are entitled to reimbursement of the paid licence fee provided that all copies of the program saved on your hard disk or archived otherwise will be destroyed, the program uninstalled or the original package will be returned. If the licence is cancelled for any reason, automatic blocking of the program may occur in the case of its continued using.

8. Limitation of liability. Neither the ILLKO company nor its dealers and suppliers bear any liability for any consequent, accidental or special damages including lost profit, interruption of business or loss of data resulting from use or inability to use this program even if the ILLKO company is notified of the possibility of occurrence of such damages. Liability for potential damage caused by use or inability to use this program is governed, with your consent given by this agreement, by the Commercial Code of the Czech Republic. For the event of occurrence of any damage for which the ILLKO company, its dealers and suppliers would be responsibility so that the ILLKO company would be liable for compensation as well as for the event when jurisdiction of any country would not allow to exclude or to limit compensation for the damage, a contractual penalty has been agreed upon in the amount of the licence fee paid by you for the product on the basis of which the damage has been caused and such contractual penalty includes in it already a lump compensation for such potential damage. The program delivered is not intended to be deployed in applications with high risk, especially where program failure could directly endanger life or cause considerable material damage. Such applications include e.g. the operating part of nuclear power plants, weapon systems, equipment intended for direct support of vital functions of persons, etc.

9. Program updating. In order to maintain correct functionality of the program, the manufacturer or its business partners may issue program updates available through websites or on memory media (such as CD-ROM). These updates improve program properties and eliminate potential errors. If you download any program update, you bear all risks with respect to damage of the program during transmission and downloading.

10. Governing law, arbitration clause. This agreement is governed by the law of the Czech Republic with exclusion of any standards in collision. All disputes which could arise from this agreement or in connection herewith will be decided, with exclusion of authority of civil courts, with final validity in arbitration proceeding before the Arbitration Court at the Chamber of Commerce of the Czech Republic and the Chamber of Agriculture of the Czech Republic in Prague in accordance with its Rules by three arbitrators appointed in accordance with these Rules. The parties undertake to fulfil all the duties imposed on them in the arbitration sentence within the periods specified in it.

Manufacturer, service:



ILLKO, s.r.o. Masarykova 2226/18a 678 01 Blansko Czech Republic tel./fax: (+420) 516 417 355 illko@illko.cz www.illko.cz